
 

 

 

 
 
 

A D D E N D U M   N O.  6 
 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS  
NO. PM 13-11  

 
FOR 

 
BOND PROGRAM MONITOR 

 
 
 

November 6, 2013 
 
 

Address all questions to: 
 

Perrin  Reid 
E-mail: PReid@email.laccd.edu. 

 
 
 This RFP Addendum is issued for the purpose of revising and clarifying the above- 
referenced Request for Proposals. Capitalized terms shall have the meanings assigned to them in 
the RFP Instructions. Proposers are reminded of their obligation under the RFP Documents to 
include in their Proposals a confirmation of receipt and review of all RFP Addenda by 
completing and signing the District’s form of Acknowledgement of Addenda attached to the RFP 
Instructions.  
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The RFP Documents are hereby revised and/or clarified as follows: 

 
 A. Responses to questions.  The District has received and responds below to the 
following questions: 

 
Question No. 3: “Will any firms or individuals who 
were associated with the previous Office of 
Inspector General as contracted consultants in any 
way be disqualified or restricted from pursuing or 
in participating on a team because of any conflict 
of interest concerns and/or who would, by their 
participation, in any way jeopardize or adversely 
impact a team's potential selection?” 

 

  3.  District Response:  A firm or individual would 
not be disqualified based on conflict of interest 
solely on the basis that it/he/she was associated 
with the firm that previously served the District in 
the Office of Inspector General. 

Question No. 4: “Would being a subconsultant on 
a County of Los Angeles project to a first or second 
tier subconsultant to a another firm that is working 
on the LACCD Bond Program be interpreted by 
LACCD as a Conflict of Interest (COI) relative to 
this RFP?” 

4.   District Response:  Possibly. The details, 
including names of firms, circumstances involved 
should be disclosed in the Conflict of Interest form 
provided as part of the RFP. The District will then 
make a determination based on those 
circumstances and any independent investigation 
whether a conflict of interest exists. 

Question No. 5: “Is it contemplated the BPM 
would provide oversight of those engaged in front-
line inspection and evaluation of the work by 
contractors; i.e., to the extent of determining 
whether any integrity concerns are involved?” 

5.   District Response:  The District would expect 
the BPM to do a general and high-level evaluation 
of the inspection process and respond to 
circumstances brought to its attention indicating 
possibly integrity concerns.  Continuing or detailed 
oversight of the inspection processes on a routine 
basis would not be expected. 

Question No. 6:  “Is it contemplated the BPM 
would oversee those engage in front-line site safety 
enforcement to the extent of determining whether 
any integrity concerns are involved; such as by 
reviewing the validity of OSHA or other safety 
credentials?” 

6.   District Response:  The District would expect 
the BPM to do a general and high-level evaluation 
of safety procedures and respond to circumstances 
brought to its attention indicating possibly integrity 
concerns.  Continuing or detailed oversight 
conditions related to safety on a routine basis 
would not be expected. 

Question No. 7: “Are the pre-qualification 
questionnaires that have been completed by 
companies now doing work on any of the sites 
available routinely to the BPM?” 

7. District Response:  Pre-qualification 
questionnaires would be available to the BPM on 
request. It is not anticipated that they would be 
provided on a routine basis.  

Question No. 8:  “Is the BPM expected to have 
any role in the review of or verification of the 
prequalification background questionnaires?” 

8. District Response: The District does not 
anticipate the BPM conducting a continuing, 
routine review of pre-qualification questionnaires 
submitted by companies doing work for the 
District. 

Question No. 9: “Other than the hotline, are there 
any programs or activities of the former Office of 
Inspector General (“OIG”) or another entity which 
the LACCD wants to see continued such as training 

9.  District Response:  Training and integrity 
awareness programs, sampling methods, and 
inspections are part of the scope of the BPM’s 
services. 

Page 2 of 5 
BPM_RFP_Add 6_10_28_13 



and integrity awareness programs, sampling 
methods, inspections?” 
Question No. 10:  “Will the LACCD be directing 
specific monitoring activities, such as particular 
audits, inspections or investigations, or referring 
matters or specific areas of concern to the BPM?” 

10.  District Response: Yes. 

Question No. 11: “Is there a requirement for a  
specific number or minimum number of audits and 
investigations to be performed, or is that left to the 
discretion of the BPM?” 

11.   District Response:  There are no such 
minimums now established, but they may be 
established as the details of the functions of the 
BPM are further developed based on the 
recommendations of the firm that is awarded the 
BPM Agreement. 

Question No. 12: “There is a right of audit clause 
in favor of the LACCD in the contract for the 
proposers to this RFP. Is there a comparable clause 
in the contract for the construction companies? 
contracts? [sic] Is so, will this right to audit extend 
to the BPM? 

12.   District Response: There is an audit provision 
in the District’s forms of construction contracts 
that permits audit by the District or its authorized 
representatives, auditors, attorneys, and 
accountants. 
 

Question No. 13:  “Regarding access to district 
facilities, what form of ID will be issued? Will 
there be an announcement to the contractors and 
their workers regarding the appointment and 
authorities of the BPM?” 

13.   District  Response: The form of ID and 
announcement will be determined after award 
based in part on the recommendations of the BPM 
in that regard. 

Question No. 14: “For the office space of the Bond 
Monitor, are there any restrictions, limitations or 
requirements as to the location or size of such 
office?” 

14.   District Response: The location should be in 
the Los Angeles area. There are no restrictions on 
size, though the size should be reasonable and 
appropriate. 

Question No. 15: “Will the LACCD make office 
equipment and/or supplies available to the monitor 
for efficiency, or must those be independently 
provided?” 

15.   District Response:  Office equipment and 
supplies are the responsibility of the BPM. 

Question No. 16: “Do the Bond Monitor’s work 
plans, audit, investigative, or prevention activities 
need LACCD approval prior to execution?” 

16.  District Response:  The framework of the 
work plans, investigations, and other activities will 
be subject to approval by the District, but the BPM 
will have discretionary control and responsibility 
for their substantive content. 

Question No. 17: “By approximately what date 
would the BPM be expected to start work, allowing 
for the full selection process to run its course?” 

17.  District Response: The exact dates of RFP 
activities not already set forth in the RFP Schedule 
will be announced by RFP Addendum. The District 
is anticipating award sometime in the early part of 
2014. 

Question No. 18: “Are any other operational, 
compliance and performance audits being 
performed by District auditors (staff or 
consultants) and available for review either before 
or after selection?   

18. District Response: Audit reports are available 
on the District’s website. 

Question No. 19: “Please clarify item 4.3 in RFP 
Attachment #2 with respect to the BPM’s role, per 
17300, to prevent misconduct in areas of “…gross 
mismanagement or waste or abuse of District 
funds”[sic] and 17310.”  

19. District Response:  The reference in  Section 
4.3 of Attachment No. 2 to “internal controls, 
policies and procedures” refers to making additions 
or changes to existing internal controls, policies 
and procedures” for the Bond Program that will 
facilitate detecting and preventing misconduct of 
the type described in the Applicable Rules. 
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Question No. 20: “Please clarify the distinction 
between the issues in Question #2 to “…not identify 
areas where the Bond Program could be operated 
more effectively or efficiently” and 17301.c. 
(Powers and Duties) “…to evaluate the policies 
and procedures governing the Bond Program, as 
well as where appropriate, the performance of 
work related to the Bond Program, in order to 
develop recommendations on revisions that would 
facilitate prevention and detection of possible 
misconduct related to the Bond Program.” 

20.  District  Response: The District does not 
understand the question and therefore is unable to 
respond. 

Question No. 21: “Is the BPM to rely on the 
findings of other audits as a factual basis for 
evaluating and advising the Chancellor and 
Board?” 

21.   District Response: The BPM is responsible to 
use its judgment in determining what are reliable 
sources of information upon which to provide 
advice to the Chancellor and Board within the 
scope of the BPM’s responsibilities under the 
Board Rules and its Agreement with the District. 

Question No. 22: “Does this mean only look at the 
performance of the work to identify misconduct (or 
potential misconduct) and not report on the 
performance actually observed relating to policies, 
procedures, contracts, regulations or statutes[?]” 

22.   District Response: The primary role of the 
BPM is identify, report on, and prevent misconduct 
of the type described in the applicable Board 
Rules. If reporting on policies, procedures, 
contracts, regulations or statutes facilitate that 
objective, then that would be considered within the 
scope of the BPM’s reporting responsibilities. 

Question No. 23: “Is the case management 
software procured by the former Inspector General 
available for use on this assignment?  If so, can 
you identify the software and version.” 

23.   District Response: Yes, it is Devesys, Ver. 
3.0. 

Question No. 24: “Is there a current backlog of 
Whistleblower cases that need to be investigated?” 

24.   District Response: There are currently five 
(5) open cases. 

Question No. 25: “Are there any indicators of (or 
for determining) BPM workload available?” 

25.  District Response: No. 

Question No. 26: “Approximately how many 
Whistleblower reports that would be the BPM’s 
responsibility to investigate have been logged in 
the last 12 months?” 

26.  District Response: Four (4) cases have been 
logged in over the past approximately six month 
period. 

Question No. 27: “Is there a current backlog of 
cases to be investigated?  If so, how many have 
been logged in the last 12 months?” 

27.  District Response:  The Office of Inspector 
General, as distinguished from the Whistleblower 
Hotline, has been vacant for the past approximately 
six (6) months. Accordingly, there are no open 
cases other than Whistleblower cases as previously 
stated and there is no complete work history 
available covering the past 12 months.  

Question No. 28: “Please clarify the scope of item 
2.10 in RFP Attachment #2 regarding the 
evaluation and recommendations of computer 
software, i.e., only Construction Bond Program 
related systems and/or software used by the 
Program Management Team and/or Project 
Management Teams or District and Campus 
software and systems?” 

28.  District Response: The District does not 
understand the question and therefore is unable to 
respond. 

Question No. 29: “Please identify the legal 
authority of the BPM referenced in item 4.3 in RFP 

29.  District Response: The District does not 
understand the question and therefore is unable to 
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Attachment #2.” respond. 
Question No. 30:  “Please clarify item 4.3 in RFP 
Attachment #2 with respect to Rule 17310 and the 
statement to “…not identify areas where the Bond 
Program could be operated more effectively or 
efficiently.” 

30. District Response: The question appears to 
contain an incorrect reference to Paragraph 4.3 of 
Attachment No. 2, and as such no response can be 
given. 

Question No. 31:  “Are the positions identified as 
“key” expected or required to be full-time 
positions?” 

31.  District Response: That is a matter for each 
Proposer to decide. 

 
 B. Other Revisions to RFP Documents:  
 
  No further revisions at this time. 

 
END OF ADDENDUM NO. 6 
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